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NANCY J. MARVEL
Regional Counsel

EDGAR P. CORAL
Assistant Regional Counsel
lJ. S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region IX
75 Hawthorne Strcet
San Fnmcisco. CA 94105
(415) 972·3898

UNITED STA'ffiS
ENVlRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION IX

i~ 'SEP2S PH 3:30

L CONSENT AGREEMENT

The Un itcd StaleS Environmental Protection Agern;y, Region IX ("EI'A"). lind SOl

2. Complainant is the Dirtctor of the Communities and Ecosystems Division in EPA.

Region IX (the ·'Complainan!"), Pursuant til EPA Delegation Order Number 22-3·A, dated May

11, 1994, the Administmtor of EPA has delegated the authority to file this action under EPCRA

Industries, Inc. (the "Respondent") agree to senle this matter and consent to the entry of this

Consent Agreement lind Final Order ("CAFD").

A. A\[[HQRITY AND PARTIES

CONSEl'IT AGREEMENT
AND FINAL OKDER

pursuanl10 40 C.r.R. §§ 22.13(b),
22. I8(b){1), and 22.I8(b)(3)

Docket No. EPCRA.9·2007. oo~A

Respondent.

In the matter of:

SDI Industries, [nc.,

1, This is II civil adminiSll'lltive action brought under Section 31S(c) oflhe Emergency

Planning and Community Right.To-Know Act ("EPCRA~), 42 U.S.c. § 1104S(c), for

asseso:;mem of a civil administrative penalty against Respondent for its failure to submit a timely,

oompletc and correct Toxic Chemical Release: Inventory Fonn for calendar years 2002 through

and including 2005 in violation of Section 313 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023, and the

implememing regulations set forth at 40 C.F.R. Part 372,
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to the Regional Administrator of EPA, Region IX, and pursuant to EPA Regional Order Number

R1260. I4B, dated May 19, 2005, the Regional Administrator rc:-delegated that authority to

Complainant,

B. SIAnrrORY AND REGULATORY BASIS

3. Pursuant to Sections 313 and 328 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 11023 and 11048, EPA

promulgated rcgulatioru! on February 16, 1988 (53 Fed. Reg. 4525), sening forth requirement<;

for the submission of infonnation relating to the release of toxic chemicals under EPCRA

Section 313. These regulations, as amended. are prc:sently codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 372.

4. Sections 3 I3(a) and (b) ofEPCRA. 42 U.S.c. §§ 11023(8) and (b), and 40 C.F.R.

§§ 372.22 and 372,30, provide that the owner or operator of a facility must ,ubmit to EPA and

the State in which the facility is located a chemical release fonn published under Section 313(8)

ofEPCRA for each toxic chemical listed under Section 313(c) ofEPCRA and 40 C.F.R.

§ 372.65 that it manufactured, processed or otherwise used if: (i) lhe facility has ten or more full_

time employees; (ii) thc facility is in Standard Industrial Classification Code 3535; and (iii) lhe

facility manufactured, processed Or otherwise used during lhe calendar year the listed toxic

chemical in excess of the threshold quantity established under Section 313(f) of EPCRA and 40

C.F.R. § 372.25.

5. Pursuant to Section 313(g) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § I1023(g), EPA published a

unifonn Toxic Chemical Release Inventory Fonn (hereinafter rc:ferred to as a "Fonn Ie) for

facilities that arc subject to the reporting requirements ofSeClion 313. Sections 313(a) and (b) of

EPCRA, 42 V.S.c. §§ 11023{a) and (b), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30(d), provide that each Fonn R

for activities involving a toxic chemical that occurred during a calendar year must be submitted

on or before July I of the next year.

C. ALLEGED VIOLATIONS

6. Respondent is a corpol'1ltion and therefore filS within the definition ofa "person," as

provided in Section 329(7) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(7).

7. At all times relevant to this mauer, Respondent owned and operated a facility (the

"Facility") ;n the business of conveyor equipmont manufacturing, located at 13000 Pieree St",et

Consent Agreement and Final Order
In re SDllnduslrl.... Inc,
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in Pacoima, Califomla, thaI His within the definition ofa '"facility," as provided in Section

329(4) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4).

8. At alltlmes relevant to this malter, the Facility had 10 or more "full-time employees,"

as thaI term is deflne<:l at 40 C.F.R. § 372.3,

9. At aJilimes relevant to this matter, the Facility was in Standard Industrial

Classification Code 3535,

10. During me calendar year 2002, Respondent "processed," as that term is defined in 40

C.F.R. § 312.3, approximately 2,344 pounds of lead, a toxic chemical listed under40 C.F.R.

§ 372,65. This quantity exceeded the 100 pound threshold for reporting "prt::«sging" of that

chemical established under Section 313(1) of EPCRA, 42 U.S,c. § II023(f), and 40 C.F.R.

§ 372.28.

II, During the calendar year 2003, Respondent "processed," as that tenn is defined in 40

C.F.R. § 372.3. approximately 1,045 pounds of lead, a loxic chemical listed under 40 C.F.R.

§372.65. This quantily exceeded !he 100 pound threshold for reporting "processing" of lhat

chemical established under Section 313(1) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11023(1), and 40 C.F.R.

§ 372.28,

12. During the calendar year 21)04, Respondent "processed," as !hattenn is defined in 40

C.F,R, § 372.3, approximately 680 pounds of lead, a toxic chemical listed under 40 C.F.R.

§ 372.65. This quantity exceeded the 100 pound !hreshold for reporting "processing" of lhat

chemical established under Section 313(1) of EPCRA, 42 U.S,c. § 11023(1), and 40 C,F.R.

21 § 372.28.

22 13. During lbc calendar year 2005, Respondent "processed," as lhat lenn is defined in 40

23

26

C,F.R. § 372.3, approximately 704 pounds of lead, a toxic chemicallisled under 40 C.F.R.

§ 372.65, This 4uantity exceeded lbe 100 pound lhreshold for reporting "processing" of !hat

chemical established under Se<:tion 313(f) ofE?CRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(1), and 40 C.F.R.

§ 372.28,

14. Respondenl was re<:Juired 10 submit a Fonn R for lead to EPA and the State of

California for calendar year 2002 on or before July I, 2003.

Consent Agreement and Final Order
I~ re SDI Industries, Inc.
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IS. Respondcnlwas required 10 submit. Fom R fCK lead 10 EPA and the Swe of

C.lifomia for calendar year 2003 on or bc:r~ July 1,2004.

16. Rnpondm' ....-as required 10 submit. Form R for le<od 10 EPA and ItIc StMc of

C.lifomUo for calendar year 2004 "" or before July I, 2001.

1,. Respondent was requircd 10 submit. Fom R for lead 10 EPA and tho: Slate of

Califomill for ukndar) 2005 on or befOR July I, 2006.

18. Respondent failed 10 timely submit the Foml Rs required of it to EPA and the Slate

orc.lifomia forc:lllcndar yean 2002, 2003. 2004, and 2005, and thus violat~ Seo;tion 313 of

EPCRA. ~2 U.S.C. § 11023, and 40 C.F.R. Pan 372.

19. Section 325{c) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 1104S(c). and the Civil Monetary Pe... lty

Inn.lion Adju~lment Rule, 40 C,F ,R. Pan 19, provide that lilly pclWn who viol.le:s any

requirement OfScClioll 313 shall be liable 10 the United Stales for a civil penally in In amount

not to c~ceed $27,500 for each SUl:h violation that ()(:currw between January 31, 1997 and

Mareh 14,2004 and $32,500 f", each luch violalion that occurred on or after March 15.2004.

Under the Enfol't'ement Response Poli~y for Section 313 of EPCRA, dated Augu$t 10, 1992, Ind

the Civil Monetary Penally Inflation AdjU5lment Rille. the vi(,lat;ons ~itcd above would merit I

lOtalllf1lvlty-bascd ~ivil ~nally of ONE HUNDRED AND ONE TIl0USAND AND FOUR

HUNDRED DOLLARS ($101,400), gi,en the nature, ein:unwanees, and extent of the violations

alleged,

D. RESPONDENTS ADMISSIONS

20. In -.:eordanee with 40 C.F.R.. f 22,18(b)(2) and for the purpo:se of this pl<Xftdina.

Rcsponclmt: (i) admits !hat EPA hasjwisdiclion ova the subjea matter of this CAFO and O>'o:r

Rdpon&:nI; (il) neither ..units I"Q' 6enie5 the spcot:irlC fxtualallegations conu.ined in 5«:tion

I.C of this CAFO; (iii) CllDSIC1It5 to any and III conditions speo;ifkd in !his CAfO and 10 the

a.ssment of the ~ivil adminislralive penalty IIIlder Sec1ion !.Eof!his CAFO; (iv) waivn any

ript 10 contest the allegations contained in this CAFO; and (v) wai~ the right 10 IpJlQllhe

propoud Final Onkr contained in this CAFO.

COlIKnt Agreement and Final Order
rn r. SDllnd",r,l.s, rnc.
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E. CIVIL ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY

21. In setllemenl of the violatloll$ s~ific.ally alleged in 5«1;on I.e oflhis CAFO.

Rcspondem shall pay Bcivil administrative penalty ofNINETEEN THOUSAND, ONE

HUNDRED, AND NINETY-SEVEN DOLLARS ($19,197) and perform the tasks set forth in

Section LF oflhis CAFO, according 10 the terms of this CAFO. Respon\knl shall pay this civil

penalty within thiny (30) days of the effective date of this CAPO, shall make this payment by

tasllier's Qr certified check payable to the "TIl'UUll'r, United Stales of America,~and shall send

the check by certifi«t mail, return r=eipl requested, to the following address:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX
p.o. Box 371099M
Pillsburgh. PA 15251

Itcspo"""n! shall accompany its payment with a lnlnsminalleller identifying the case name, Ihe

case docket number, and this CAFO. O:mculTOnt Wilh delivery of the paymmt of the penally,

Respondenl shall send a copy of the check and transmillal letter to the following addresses:

Regional Hearing Clerk
Office ofRegiOt\JlI Counsel (ORC-I)
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 9410S

Mariela Lopez
Cotnmunllles and Ecosystems Division (CED-4)
U.S, Environmental Protection Agency. Region IX
7S Hawthorne Street
San Francisco. CA 94JOS

ElIgarCoral
Officc of Regional Counsel (ORC-2)
U.S, Environmental Protection Agency. Region IX
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 94JOS

22. Respondent shall r1Qt usc payment ofany penalty under this CAFO or any and all

costs inculTOd in performing the tasks s~ifIe<:1 in S~lion LF ofthi, CAFO as a tax deduction

from Respondent's federal, stale, or 'Iocal taxes, nor shall Respondent allow any other person to

usc such payment or incurred cost as a tax deduclion.

23. [fRespondent fails to pay the assessed civil administrative penally ofNINETEEN

COllSen! A&reemenl and Final Order
In re SDl/ndl<Jlritl, Inc,
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THOUSAND, ONE HUNDRED, AND NINETY-SEVEN DOLLARS ($19,197), as identified in

Peragrnph 21, by the deadline s!"'cified in that Paragraph, men Respondent shall also pay a

stipulated JXnalty to EPA aml Sc<;l;on I.F of this CAFO will be nullified. The amounl aflhe

stipulated I)Cnalty will be EIGHTY-TWO THOUSAND, TWO HUNDRED, AND THREE

DOLLARS ($82,203), and will be immediately due and payable on the day following the

deadline specified in Paragraph 21. together with the initially assessed civil administrative

penally ofNINETEEN THOUSAND, ONE HUNDRED, AND NINETY·SEVEN DOLLARS

($19,197). resulting in a total penalty due ofONE HUNDRED AND ONE THOUSAND AND

FOUR HlJNDItED DOLLARS ($101 ,400). Failure to pay the civil administrative penally

specified in Paragraph 21 by the deadline specified in that Paragraph may also lead to any or all

of the following actions:

(1) EPA may ~fer the debIto a c~dil reporting agency, a collection

agency, or 10 lhe Departmcnt ofJustice for filing ofa collection aClion in the appropriate United

Stales Dislrict Court. 40 C.F.R. §§ 13.1 3, 13.14 and 13.33. The validily, amount, and

appropriateness of the assessed penalty or of this CAFO is nol subject to review in any such

collection proceeding,

(2) The U.S. Governmcnt may collecllhe debt by adminiSlrative offset

(i.e" the withholding of money payable by lhe United Slates to, or held by thc United States for,

a person 10 !llltisfy lhe debtlhe person owes the U.S, Governmen!), which includes, bul is nOl

limited to, referral 10 the Intemai Revenue Service for offsel against income tax refunds. 40

C.P.R. §§ 13(C)and 13(H).

(3) Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, EPA may either: (i) suspend or revoke

Respondent's licenses or other privjjeges. or (iil suspend or disqualify Respondenl from doing

business with EPA or engaging in programs EPA sponsors or funds,

(4) Pursuant to 31 U,S.C. § 310 I el seq, and 40 C,F.R. Part 13, lhe U.S.

Go,'ernment may assess interest, administrali,'e handl ing charges, and nonpaymenl penalties

asainst the oUistanding amount that ReslX'ndenl owes to EPA for Respondent's failure 10 pay the

civil administrative penally specified in Paragraph 21 by lIle deadline specified in that Paragraph,

Consent Agreement and Final Order
{n '" SDllnduslrles, {tw,

Page 6



1,
3

(a) Int~ PIIr$uanI 10 31 U.S.C.§3111and4OC.F.R.

f13.11(a)(l), any Wlpaid portion of the useswd penalty shall bear inteRst al!he .. CSQblished

KCOI"dina 10 26 U.S.C. § 662I{a)(2) rrom!he etT«l:ive dalC oflbi$ CAFO, provilkd, ho_ver,

Il.-I no inlereSl shall be payable 00 any portion of!he assessed penally Ihat i, paid wil!lin thirty•
5 (JO) day, oflhe effo;tive date of this CAFO.

(b) Admini$trame Handling Charges. J>umant 10 31 U.S.C.

Section 3717(e)(l)and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(b), Respondent shall pay a monthly handling dIarge,
•
7

8 based on either aetull or average c:.osr.~ (including boIh direct md indim:t eosu), for

9 every month in which ""y portion of the "seued penally is more than thiny (30) day' pas! d\le.

1 0 (~) Nonpa)·ment PCflaltiea. Pursuant 10 31 U.S.C. § 3111(e)(2)

11 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.II(~), a monthly penally ~hlll'ie, not to exceed six pe"",m (6%) annually.

12 may be assessed on all o;k:b\s more than ninety (90) days ddinquent.

13 F. slim EMENTAL ENYIRONMENTAL PROJECT

14 24. Within 30 days entry of this CAFO, Respondent shall purchase and <;Ionate the

15 emersency ~sJlOnsc equipment spedlied in the July 16.2007 letter from Tracy I'ansini. Fi~

16 Chief, City of gurbank Fire Oepartmerlt, 311 Or.nge Grove AVCflUC. Burbank, California,

17 91~02-122I,10 Edgar Co",1 of U.s. EPA, Region IX. (This July 16, 2007 letter, along ",illt its

18 tcehnical.speeifieation attaehmcnts and a follow....p Au&ui!t 16,2007 email fn:xn Thomas

19 l..mah.I, 8awoJion Chief, Burbank Fi~ 0epMImmt. an: utBd>ed 10 Ihis CAFO u Exhibit A.J

20 The IOU1 OOSI of the CI1'1CT'8cno;:y rnponK equipment donated 10 the City of 8urt.nk Fift

21 OeJ:*trnent shall be SIXTY-FOUR THOUSAND, SEVEN HUNDRED, At'D TWENTY-NINE

22 DOLLARS ($64,729).

23 lS. Within 60 daysofcnuy ofth;s CAFO, Respondent shall wbmil a final report 10

24 Mariela Lopez of U.s. EPA, Region IX that certifies completion of the dona1ion requiml by

25 Paragraph 24 ofltlis CAFO and includes all rtte;pu for pun:hases ofernergeney response

26 equipment specified in Atw:hmem A. This Report shall ,Iso include a ....Tinen ackllO'ftledgment

21 from Tracy PUllin] of the City of811rbank Fi~ Department that all emergency ~sponse

28 equipment specified in Attachment A has be<:n rttei~ed by his office.

COI\Se1\I A&lUmml and Final Order
fn" SDIIMUSlrle., Inc.
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26. Respondent shall pay a stipulated JXnalty of$250 for each and evuy day that its

perfonnance of the tasks specified in Paragraphs 24 and 25 is delinquent.

G. CERTIFICATION Of COMPI lANCE

27. In executing tili. CAFO, Respondent certifies that (I) it has now fully completed and

submitled to EPA all oflhe required Toxic Chemical Release Inventory Forms in compliance

with Section 313 ofEPCRA, 42 U.s.C. § 11023, and the regulations promulgated thereunder;

and (2) it has complied with all otrn:, EPCRA requirements at all facilities under its control.

H. RETENTION Of RIGHTS

28. In accordance with 40 C,F.R. § 22.18(c), this CAFO only resolves Respondent's

Ijabilities for federal civil penalties for lhe vlolalions and facls s!,<,cifically alleged in Section I.e

oflhi. CAFO. Nothing in tn;. CAFO is inlended 10 or shall 00 conslrUed to resolve: (i) any civil

liabilily for violalions of any provision of any federal. state, or local law, Slatute, regulation, rule,

ordlnance, or permit not specifically alleged in SC<:tion I.C of this CAFO; or (ii) any criminal

liability. EPA specifically reserves any and all authorities, righls, and remedies available to it

(including, but nOl limited to, injunctive or other equitable reliefor criminal sanctions) to

address any violation of this CAFD or any violation nOl spe<:ifically alleged in Section I.C of this

CAro.

29. This CAFO docs not exempl, relieve, modify, or affect in any way Respondent's

duties to comply with all applicable federal, Slate, and local laws, regulations, rules. ordinances,

and pcrrnilS.

l. AITORNEYS' EEES AND COSTS

30. Each party shall bear ilS Own attorneys' fees, costs, and disbursements incurred in

lhis proceeding.

J. EFfECTIVE DATE

31. In accordance with 40 C.EK §§ 22.18(bX3) and 22.3 I{b). this CAFO shall 00

effective on the date lim lhe Final Order contained in this CAfO, having ooen approved and

iss~d by either lhe Regional Judicial Officer or Regional Administrator, is fi led.

K. BJNDlNG EffECT

Consent Agreement and Final Otde,
In re SDf fndwlries. fne.
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32. The undersigned representative of Complainant and the undersigned representative

of Respondent each certifies that he or she is fully authorized to enler into the terms and

conditions of this CAFO and to bind the party he Qr she represents 10 this CAFO.

33. The provisions of this CAFQ shan apply to and be binding upon Respondent and its

officers, directors, employees, agents. trustees. servants, authorized representatives, "U<;ceS!KIrs,

and /Illsigns.

fOR RESPONDENT SDlINDUSTRlES, INC.:

n

" 3.:.Jd -'01-
DATE A ADA

President
SOl Industries Inc.
13000 Pierce Street
Pacoima, CA 91331

"
18 FOR COMPLAfNANT EPA:

20 1:.J!l-lOD'f.-
21 DATE

"
"
"
"
"
"
'5

Consent Agreement and Final Order
In fa SDl /IUiUflries, Er,c

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX
75 Hawthorne Slr<:et
San francisco, California 94105
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32. The undersigned representative of Complainant and the undersigned representative

of Respondent each certifies that he Or she is fully authorized to enter into the tenns and

conditions oflhi, CAFD and to bind the party he or she represents to this CAFO.

33. The provisions of this CAFD shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent and ils

officers. directors. employees. agents. lrustees, servants. authorized representatives. successors,

and assigns.

FOR RESPONDENT SDlINDUSTRJES. INC

13

U-'{!7-
DATE ~A ADA

President
SO! Industries Inc.
13000 Pierce Sireet
Pacoima. CA 91331

18 FOR COMPLAINANT EPA:

"
21 DATE

22

23

26

28

Consent Agreement and Final Order
In re SDI Industries. Inc,

JEFF SCOrf
Acting Director. Communities and Ecosystems Division
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco. California 94105
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II. FmAlORDER

EPA and SDllndustries, In<.. hiving cnteml imo tIE fon:goin& CoRsa1t Agrftme:nl.,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED thar.lhi$CAFO (Doctet No. EPCRA.9-2007.~

mtned, and Respondent shall pi)'. civil adminiwali.'c penally in the amount ofN~ETEEN

6 rnOUSAND, ONE HUXDRED, AND NINETY-SEVEN DOLL\RS {SI9.197}. and eomplele

1 the SupplefMJ1lAt Envirnnmentlll Project spec:ified in Seaion I.E of this CAFO in M:COl'danu

8 wjl!'llhe terms set (0f1h in this CAFO.

9

"
" /12 ollis <>}

DATE

"
1<

"
16

"
18

19

20

21

22

"
"
"
"
"
28

Consent AjVeemenl and Fino! Order
In,., $Dllnd"'J!rie., Inc.

STEVEN JA WOI
Regional Judi Offie r
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Region JX
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that the original and one copy of the fully executed Consent Agrcemmt and

Final Order J'ursuanlto 40 C.F.R Soctions 22.13 and 22.18 (Docket No. EPCRA-09-2007-OO,,;}

agamst SOl lndusoies. Inc.. was filed this day '.mh the Regional Hcaril1& Clm. U.S. EPA.

Region lX. 75 Ha...."thome Stro:t. San Franc:isoo. California 94105. and thaI a tr\.Ie and COIT"eCI

copy of the same was satt to Respondent at !he following addre$$:

Donald DeSanl:ti$
Presidmt
SOl IndUilllC$. Inc.
13000 Pierce StTeel
Pacoima. CA 91331

Certified Mail No. 7005 31100002 8247 6891

.J 4Uti&Q, !L CM\
~leCarr Date 01-.:LL,- O(
Regional Hearing Clerk
U.S. Enyironmental Protection Agency. Region IX


